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MEMORANDUM 

To : Consultee 

 
From : Mr Ollie Jones, Planning Services, Blueschool House - H31 

 
Tel : 01432 260504 

 
My Ref : 163932 

Date : 15/09/2023 
 

   

 
APPLICATION NO &  
SITE ADDRESS: 

Planning Re-consultation - 163932 - Land at Hardwick Bank, 
Bromyard, Herefordshire,  

DESCRIPTION: Outline planning application for a sustainable urban extension 
comprising: up-to 250 dwellings; open space, allotments and 
landscaping; school expansion land; areas of children's play; 
sustainable urban drainage infrastructure; internal roads; and 
associated infrastructure. Detailed approval is sought for principal 
means of access and layout with all other matters reserved.     

APPLICANT(S): The Owner and/or Occupier 
GRID REF: OS 364358, 254665 
APPLICATION TYPE: 
WEBSITE LINK: 

Outline 
http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/searchplanningapplications 

  
  

Amended ☐   Additional  ☐   Amended and Additional  New or Re-Consultation ☐ 

 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/
https://www.facebook.com/hfdscouncil
https://twitter.com/HfdsCouncil
https://www.instagram.com/hfdscouncil/
http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/searchplanningapplications


The local highway authority (LHA) has the following comments to make on the updated scheme, albeit it should be noted that these comments are made 
prior to sight of the Stage 1 RSA which is understood to be in progress: 
 
 

LHA Original Comment Applicant’s Response LHA Final Response 

 
 

Accepted 

 
 

Accepted 

 

 Accepted, however, a 2m x 2m 
pedestrian vision splay should be 
provided on the northern side where it 
meets Cherry Tree Close, at present it 
is bordered by a high fence right up to 
the footway. 

  

There is nothing to force the school to 
include a drop-off area in the expansion 
land and an application may not be 
forthcoming for a number of years but if 
parents drop-off at this location 
residents may complain and it will be 
the schools/Council’s responsibility to 
address the issue. 
A one-way system is not enforceable 
without a TRO and the road is too wide 
to encourage its operation as a one-way 
system.  In addition, it is likely that the 
two 4 bed dwellings opposite the visitor 
spaces will occupy at least 2 of the 
visitor spaces as they have three 
tandem spaces so the third space is 
unlikely to be used. 

 
 

The Phasing Plan shows the link to the 
school to be provided in Phase 2.  This 
is not acceptable as travel habits will be 
established prior to its construction.  It 
should form a condition of planning that 
the link is provided prior to first 
occupation of any dwelling.  The 
applicant should also confirm their 
commitment to provide the link in full 
(e.g. surfacing, lighting) as part of this 
application. 
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Accepted 

 

 

Accepted. However, the link to 
Stonehouse Farm is not shown on the 
S38 plans.  In addition, a second link 
onto Upper Hardwick Lane is shown on 
the S38 plans and the paths around the 
western/north-western edge of the 
development are included.  Following 
our last meeting, these paths were 
understood to just be mown ‘leisure 
routes’ and therefore not adoptable and 
so should not be included on the S38 
plan.  Clarification is sought on this 
point. 
The improvements to Upper Hardwick 
Lane and the link from the access road 
to Upper Hardwick Lane will need to be 
conditioned as being required to be 
provided in full prior to occupation of the 
first dwelling. 

 

 
Accepted.  However, a 3m service strip 
along the access road between the link 
to Upper Hardwick Lane and the 
proposed A44 access should be 
provided to ‘reserve’ the land for future 
cycleway development. 

  
This is not included on the S278 plans, 
only the off-site works plans.  It should 
be included on the S278 plan and the 
developer is required to fund the works, 
not S106. 

 

 

Whilst it is accepted that the outcome of 
a TRO cannot be guaranteed we would 
require the developer to fund the TRO 
process. 

http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/
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Accepted but paths are shown on the 
S38 plans so will need to be removed 
from the plans. 

 
 As agreed during our last meeting the 

PROW is to be provided with a 
tarmacked surface to allow for all 
weather use, albeit it is recognised that 
it wouldn’t be considered a primary 
access route due to its narrow width. 

  
There are a number of places where the 
grass verge is within the splay areas, 
for example by plot 143.  In addition the 
planning layout (dwg 0687-102 A) does 
not show the footway following the 
forward visibility splay line and the splay 
is blocked by the parking space for plot 
144. 

  Footway does not define/follow the 
splay line by plots 19, 21, 59, 60, 83 
and 143. 

 
 Could this be demonstrated on a larger 

scale plan (1:500). 

 
 Visibility splay has not been provide for 

the junction of Upper Hardwick Lane 
with the new spine road. 

 

 It is not clear from the key what the 
green hatched areas are but they 
should not include planting over 0.6m in 
height. 
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 Accepted 

 

 

 

The swept path of a fire tender has 
difficulty turning into the northern part of 
Upper Hardwick Lane and whilst it is 
recognised that it would be unusual for 
a fire tender to turn up there and 
therefore using both sides of the 
carriageway would be acceptable there 
may be regular instances when an HGV 
may have to turn up there and this 
would be an issue if it was a regular 
occurrence.  Could an HGV be tracked 
to see if there is an issue and if so 
would providing some widening help.   
In addition, visibility splays for the 
junction of the southern part of Upper 
Hardwick Lane with the new spine road 
should be provided in case the TRO to 
stop up the lane fails. 

 

 

Raised table will not be adopted and the 
planning layout shows number rumble 
strips which will also not be adopted. 

 
 Accepted. 

http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/
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Shared private drives have not been 
tracked. 

 
 

Accepted 

 

 

Accepted 

 
 

It will have to be conditioned as part of 
this application as it is part of accessing 
the development and encouraging 
travel by sustainable modes. 

  

 

The location details can be discussed 
further during the S278 process.  The 
bus stops will need to be added to the 
S278 plans. 

 

 
Comments on the Brief have been 
provided.  Awaiting completed Audit. 

 
 
 
Consultation response from: K Jones 
DATE RETURNED: 06/10/2023 
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